
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Agenda
Page 1 of 2

Licensing Sub-Committee
16 September 2015

Time 10.00 am Public Meeting? YES Type of meeting Regulatory

Venue Committee Room 1 - Civic Centre, St Peter's Square, Wolverhampton WV1 1SH

Membership
Chair Cllr Alan Bolshaw (Lab)

Labour Conservative

Cllr Rita Potter
Cllr Greg Brackenridge

Quorum for this meeting is two Councillors.

Information for the Public
If you have any queries about this meeting, please contact the democratic support team:

Contact Linda Banbury, Democratic Support Officer
Tel/Email Tel: 01902 555040 Email: linda.banbury@wolverhampton.gov.uk
Address Democratic Support, Civic Centre, 2nd floor, St Peter’s Square,

Wolverhampton WV1 1RL

Copies of other agendas and reports are available from:

Website www.wolverhampton.moderngov.co.uk1 
Email democratic.support@wolverhampton.gov.uk 
Tel 01902 555043

Please take note of the protocol for filming and recording of, and use of social media in, meetings, copies 
of which are displayed in the meeting room.

Some items are discussed in private because of their confidential or commercial nature. These reports 
are not available to the public.

http://www.wolverhampton.moderngov.co.uk1/
mailto:democratic.support@wolverhampton.gov.uk


 [NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Agenda
Page 2 of 2

Agenda
Part 1 – items open to the press and public
Item No. Title

1 Apologies for absence 

2 Declarations of interest 

3 Licensing Act 2003 - Application for a Premises Licence respect of Merridale 
Supermarket, Clifton House, Merridale Road (Pages 3 - 42)
[To consider the application for a new premises licence]

4 Exclusion of press and public 
To pass the following resolution:
That in accordance with section 100A (4) of the Local Government Act 1972 the 
press and public be excluded from the meeting for the following item of business as 
it involves the likely disclosure of exempt information falling within paragraph 3 of 
schedule 12A to the act relating to the business affairs of particular persons.

5 Deliberations and decision 

6 Re-admission of press and public 

7 Announcement of decision 

8 Exclusion of press and public 
To pass the following resolution:
That in accordance with Section 100 A (4) of the Local Government Act 1972 the 
press and public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business 
as it involves the likely disclosure of exempt information falling within paragraph 7 
of Schedule to the Act relating to any action taken or to be taken in connection with 
the prevention, investigation or prosecution of crime.

9 Licensing Act 2003 - Review of a Premises Licence (Pages 43 - 76)
[To consider an application for review from the West Midlands Police]



PUBLIC
NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

Report Pages
Page 1 of 4

Agenda Item No:  3

Licensing Sub-Committee
16 September 2015

Report Title Licensing Act 2003 – Application for a 
Premises Licence in respect of Merridale 
Supermarket, Clifton House, Merridale Road, 
Wolverhampton WV3 0UR.

Classification Public

Wards Affected Graiseley

Accountable Strategic 
Director

Tim Johnson, Place 

Originating service Licensing Services

Accountable employee(s) Rob Edge
Tel
Email

Section Leader (Licensing)
01902 55(0106)
rob.edge@wolverhampton.gov.uk

Recommendation for action or decision:

The Licensing Sub-Committee is requested to consider this application for a new premises 
licence. 

mailto:rob.edge@wolverhampton.gov.uk


PUBLIC
NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

Report Pages
Page 2 of 4

1.0 Purpose of Report

1.1 To submit for consideration by the Sub-Committee an application for a new premises 
licence. 

2.0 Background

2.1 The application was received on 9 July 2015 from Lord Kultar Deol for a premises licence 
in respect of Merridale Supermarket, Clifton House, Merridale Road, Wolverhampton 
WV3 0UR for an off licence and convenience Store.  A copy of the application is 
attached at Appendix 1.

2.2 The premises are in Graiseley ward and a location plan is attached at Appendix 2

2.3 The application is in respect of late night refreshment and the sale / supply of alcohol off 
the premises.  

2.4 It is the understanding of the licensing authority that the application for this premises 
licence has been properly made. The statutory requirement to give notice of the 
application has also been complied with. 

2.5 The following responsible authorities have been consulted on this application:

 Licensing Authority
 Environmental Health
 Planning
 Trading Standards
 Social Services
 Director of Public Health    
 West Midlands Police 
 West Midlands Fire Service

2.6 Relevant representations have been received from:

 Licensing Authority
 West Midlands Police 
 Environmental Health
 Other Persons

Copies of the representations can be found at Appendix 3 - 6

2.7 The applicant and all those who have submitted representations have been invited to 
attend the hearing.

3.0 Legal implications

3.1 Part 4(1) of the Licensing Act 2003 states that a Licensing Authority must carry out its 
function under the Act with a view to promoting the Licensing Objectives, namely:-



PUBLIC
NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

Report Pages
Page 3 of 4

(a) The prevention of crime and disorder;

(b) Public safety;

(c) The prevention of public nuisance;

(d) The protection of children from harm.

Section 18 of the Licensing Act 2003 provides that where a relevant licensing authority 
receives an application for a premises licence properly made in accordance with section 
17 of the Act it must grant the licence, subject to any relevant conditions.

However, where relevant representations are made the authority must hold a hearing 
(unless all parties agree this is unnecessary) and having regard to the representations, 
take such of the following steps as it considers appropriate for the promotion of the 
licensing objectives.

The steps are:

1. to grant the licence subject to conditions
2. to exclude from the scope of the licence any of the licensable activities to which 

the application relates
3. to refuse to specify a person as a premises supervisor
4. to reject the application

3.2 The general duties imposed on Licensing Authorities means proper consideration must 
be given to the Licensing Objectives when determining a premises licence application.

3.3 Regard shall be had to guidance issued by the Secretary of State under Section 182 and 
Wolverhampton City Council’s Licensing Policy statement.  [JB/28082015/Z]                                               

4.0 Human Rights and Equalities Implications 

4.1 This report has human rights implications for both the premises licence holder and the 
residents from the local neighbourhood.  Any of the steps outlined in Section 4 of this 
report may have financial implications for a licensee’s business and livelihood and/or 
may have impact upon the day to day lives of residents living in close proximity to the 
premises.

4.2 Article 8(i) of the European Convention of Human Rights provides that everyone has the 
right to respect for his/her private and family life and his/her home (which includes 
business premises).  This right may be interfered with by the Council on a number of 
grounds including the protection of rights and freedoms of others.  The First Protocol – 
Article 1 – also provides that every person is entitled to the peaceful enjoyment of his 
possessions and shall not be deprived of his possessions except in the public interest 
and conditions provided for by law.  Members must accordingly make a decision which is 
proportionate to the hearing and endeavour to find a balance between the rights of the 
applicant, residents and the community as a whole.



PUBLIC
NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

Report Pages
Page 4 of 4

5.0 Financial Implications

5.1 Councillors agreed fees and charges for this function on 21 January 2015; the fees are 
based on a cost recovery basis. The fee for this application is £100.00, and is non-
refundable. [TK/09012015/H]  

6.0 Environmental Implications

6.1 This report has environmental implications in that there is a potential for disturbance 
caused by patrons using the premises and nuisance caused by litter and waste 
originating from the premises.



















































 

 

 

Merridale Supermarket 

Clifton House 

Merridale Road 

Wolverhampton 

WV3 0UF 

 

 

Wolverhampton City Council  

Asset Management  

Civic Centre  

St Peters Square  

Wolverhampton  

WV1 1RL 

 

Plan Produced 

27.8.2015 

Scale 1:1,250 

 

 

 

 

APPENDIX 2 





APPENDIX 3 
 

 

 
 

From: Mitchell Harvey [mailto:m.harvey@west-midlands.pnn.police.uk]  
Sent: 04 August 2015 13:56 
To: Anita Chonk 
Cc: Licensing; Elaine Moreton 
Subject: RE: Merridale Supermarket, Clifton House, Merridale Road, 
Wolverhampton - New Premises Application [PROTECT]  
 
Dear all, 
  
Police wish to raise formal objections to the issue of a premises licence in relation to 
this application. 
  
There are ongoing issues regarding Anti Social Behaviour in the immediate vicinity of 
the proposed location. 
Police believe that the applicant will not be able to sufficiently promote the licensing 
objectives. 
  
Our objections will be cited due to our concerns and responsibilities under the 
licensing objectives of prevention of crime and disorder and public safety. 
  
Kind Regards, 
  
PC 1080 Mitch Harvey 
 

mailto:m.harvey@west-midlands.pnn.police.uk




APPENDIX 4 

 

 
 

From: Elaine Moreton  
Sent: 05 August 2015 10:14 
Subject: RE: PRE1278 MERRIDALE SUPERMARKET, CLIFTON HOUSE, 
MERRIDALE ROAD - NEW APPLICATION [PROTECT]  
 
PROTECT      
 
Dear Anita  
  
I am making formal representations on behalf of the Licensing Authority to the above 
application for a premises licence under the prevention of crime and disorder, public 
safety, the prevention of public nuisance and the protection of children from harm 
licensing objectives as there is insufficient information within the operating schedule 
to promote the four licensing objectives. I understand there is street drinking and anti 
-social behaviour issues within the immediate vicinity of the premises which also 
gives reasons for concern. 
 
Regards 
 
Elaine Moreton 
Section Leader - Licensing 
Tel. Office: 01902 555033 
 





APPENDIX 5 

 

From: Ravi Seehra  

Sent: 05 August 2015 11:53 
To: Anita Chonk 

Cc: Michelle Marie-Smith; Elaine Moreton; Juliet Grainger 
Subject: Merridale supermarket, Clifton House Merridale Road [NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]  

 
NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED      
 
Dear Anita 
 
I am making this representation on behalf of my colleague Michelle Smith  from Public Health as she 
is on annual leave, under the Prevention of Crime and Disorder and Public Safety Licencing 
objectives. 
 
We do not support the request within the operating schedule to supply alcohol off the premises 
from 0600 hours until 0000 hours seven days a week. 
 
I understand there has been concerns raised by a number of public sector agencies in relation to 
street drinking,  alcohol misuse and anti-social behaviour  in this particular area. 
 
Michelle will contact the applicant on her return to outline her representation. 
 
Kind Regards 
 
Ravi Seehra 
Commissioning Officer Public Health 
Civic Centre 
557949 
 





 

APPENDIX 6 



BY EMAIL AND HAND DELIVERED. 

Licensing@wolverhampton.gov.uk 

 

I am writing to oppose  the Off License application for the new Supermarket in this Community which 

is still to open; Merridale Supermarket, Clifton House, Merridale Road, Wolverhampton, WV3 0UR. 

The reason for this objection relates to the following: 

 Anti-Social Behaviour 

1. Public Safety  

a. Elderly people being harassed, verbally abused and being asked for money 

b. Not a safe surrounding for children and young people 

2. Crime and Disorder 

a. Theft 

b. Urinating in general public 

c. Harassing people walking general public  

3. Public Nuisance 

a. Noise pollution 

b. Litter  

 Existing Licenses/Premises 

Also this would have a negative effect on shops of similar nature within close proximity. 

The application for this premises proposes that alcohol will be sold for consumption off the premises 

from 6 o’clock in the morning until midnight, seven days a week.  

The basis for this opposition is that granting a licence for these premises will not promote the licensing 

objectives, particularly the prevention of crime, disorder and antisocial behaviour. 

Granting a licence would provide a further source of alcohol within this area already populated with 

licenced premises that public nuisance, crime and disorder have already reached problem levels for the 

local police. 

In this area residents have already endured the inconvenience of litter, noise nuisance and antisocial 

behaviour at all hours of the day and night, and it is totally unacceptable to expect them to continue to 

do so. 

Also the local residents have expressed they are unhappy with the opening of another off license.  

S.Singh 

 

Sent from Windows Mail 

 

 

 

 

mailto:Licensing@wolverhampton.gov.uk


Hi Rob, 

 

Can you please bring to the attention of the panel considering this application my objections. 

There is, and has been, many reported incidents of anti social behaviour related to the consumption of alcohol 

in this and surrounding areas of the city. 

Another store selling alcohol will only fuel this problem further. 

Constituents have contacted me stating such concerns about the application and I am inclined to agree with 

them. 

I request that the application is declined, and if this is not possible, then strict conditions imposed. 

 

Regards. 

 

Councillor Craig Collingswood.  

Park Ward. Wolverhampton City Council.  

Tel. 01902 551218  

Mobile. 07880 175071  

Email. craig.collingswood@wolverhampton.gov.uk  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

tel:01902%20551218
tel:07880%20175071
mailto:craig.collingswood@wolverhampton.gov.uk


From: Councillor Mike Hardacre 

Sent: Tuesday, August 4, 2015 4:21:08 PM 

To: Colin Parr 

Subject: FW: Merridale Supermarket Last day for comments 06/08/2015 (NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED) 

Dear Colin, 

Please accept this email as a formal objection to this licensing proposal as it stands. 

Mike Hardacre  

 

 

 

Sent with Good (www.good.com) 

  

 

From: Councillor Mike Hardacre 

Sent: Tuesday, August 4, 2015 2:58:10 PM 

To: Cheryl Rock; Philip Farmer 

Cc: Councillor Craig Collingswood; Councillor Claire Darke; Jim Smith 

Subject: RE: Merridale Supermarket Last day for comments 06/08/2015 (NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED) 

Dear Cheryl, 

Can I formally record my objections to the opening hours for alcohol font this establishment. When 

the small Sainsbury's opened on Compton road we also asked for restrictions on selling individual 

cans of ale. Given the history of anti-social behaviour in the area mainly fuelled by drink it would 

seem imprudent not to restrict alcohol sales to the same conditions that we agreed with The Sainsbury 

outlet. 

Mike Hardacre 

 

 

 

Sent with Good (www.good.com) 

  

 

http://www.good.com/
http://www.good.com/





















	Agenda
	3 Licensing Act 2003 - Application for a Premises Licence respect of Merridale Supermarket, Clifton House, Merridale Road
	APPENDIX 1 - APPLICATION FORM (2)
	APPENDIX 2 - WARD MAP (2)
	APPENDIX 3 - REPS - POLICE (2)
	APPENDIX 4 - REPS - LICENSING AUTHORITY (2)
	APPENDIX 5 - REPS - PUBLIC HEALTH (2)
	APPENDIX 6 - REPS - OTHER PERSONS (2)

	9 Licensing Act 2003 - Review of a Premises Licence
	APPENDIX 1 - HARP INN (2)
	APPENDIX 2 - HARP INN (2)
	APPENDIX 3 - HARP INN (2)
	APPENDIX 4 - HARP INN (2)


